
ESTA Agenda        Page 1 of 2 
June 25, 2021 
 

ESTA BOARD AGENDA 
Special Meeting 

 
Friday, June 25, 2021 at 9:00am 

 

In accordance with Executive Order N-29-20 the meeting will be held 

virtually. 
The Agenda is available at www.estransit.com 

 

 
Chairperson: Jim Ellis                                         Vice-Chairperson: Bill Sauser 

 
Board Members: 

Kirk Stapp (Mammoth Lakes)          Jeff Griffiths (Inyo County) 

Karen Schwartz (Bishop)             Rhonda Duggan (Mono County) 
Jim Ellis (Bishop)        Bill Sauser (Mammoth Lakes) 

Dan Totheroh (Inyo County)        Bob Gardner (Mono County) 
 

Note:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if an individual requires 
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact Eastern Sierra Transit at 
(760) 872-1901 ext. 15 or 800-922-1930.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 

enable the Authority to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this 
meeting. (28 CFR 13.102-35.104 ADA Title II) 

  

Voice recorded public comment: To submit public comment via recorded message, please 

call 760-872-1901 ext. 12 by 4pm Thursday, June 24. State your name and the item 
number(s) on which you wish to speak. The recordings will be limited to two minutes. 
These comments may be played at the appropriate time during the board meeting. 

 
Email public comment: To submit an emailed public comment to the Board please email 

pmoores@estransit.com by 4pm Thursday, June 24 and provide your name, the number(s) 
on which you wish to speak, and your comment. These comments will be emailed to all 
Board members and can be provided anytime leading up to and throughout the meeting. 

 
HOW TO ATTEND THE ESTA BOARD MEETING: 

Listen to the meeting via phone by calling 669-900-9128 enter meeting code: 760-871-
1901#, if prompted, use password 753752. Join the ZOOM meeting on your computer or 
mobile device by using this link:  

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7608711901?pwd=VS9TeE4rU0NleWFCY0JTOVhzajEyQT09 
 
Remember, to eliminate feedback, use only one source of audio for the meeting, not 

both the phone and the computer. 
 

Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  

http://www.estransit.com/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/7608711901?pwd=VS9TeE4rU0NleWFCY0JTOVhzajEyQT09


ESTA Agenda        Page 2 of 2 
June 25, 2021 
 

 
Roll Call 
 

Public Comment: The Board reserves this portion of the agenda for members of the 
public to address the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority Board on any items not on the 

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Board. The Board will listen to all 
communication, but in compliance with the Brown Act, will not take any action on items 
that are not on the agenda. 

 
A. Information Agenda          

 
A-1 Executive Director Report 

• Reporting on ESTA activities and performance 

A-2 Financial Report FY 20/21 
A-3 Return to In-Person Meetings 

A-4 ESTA Bus Stop Sign 
A-5 Ridership Report 
A-6 Strategic Business Plan Report  

A-7 Staff Evaluations 
 

B.  Action Agenda 
  

B-1 Executive Director Contract 

B-2 LSC Contract 
 

C. Consent Agenda  
 

The following items are considered routine and non-controversial by staff and will be 

approved by one motion if no member of the ESTA or public wishes an item removed. 
If discussion is desired by anyone, the item will be removed from the consent agenda 

and will be considered separately. Questions of clarification may be made by ESTA 
Board members, without the removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. 

 

C-1 Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of May 14, 2021 
 

D. Board Member Comments 
 

E. Adjournment                                                                     
 

The next regularly scheduled meeting is July 9, 2021 at 9:00 am. Check ESTA website 

for details on attending the meeting. 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item A-1 

 
A-1-1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
Subject:  Executive Director’s Report 
Presented by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 

Administration: 

Finance 

The FY21-22 Budget approval is postponed to the July 9th Board meeting. 

Recruitment 

A new Bishop dispatcher, Denise Estrada, started last week. She is bilingual 
and shows great promise as a customer service professional. 

Bishop Facility 

There is no progress to report on the lease for the new building. The temporary 
mobile office is being delivered July 6th. The new offices will be larger than 
the current space and will mark the return of Karie and I to the office.  

Fleet 

Five buses were sold to make room for new vehicles being ordered. Slowly but 
surely, we are replacing the fleet. New trolleys and cutaways are steadily 
coming in, and the heavy-duty buses in Mammoth are the next big target. 
These buses are reaching the end of their FTA defined useful life in 2024, even 
though they are requiring major overhauls today. They represent the largest 
portion of the increasing maintenance budget.  

No word yet on the Fleet Electrification Plan grant, but we should hear 
something by next month. I will bring a recommendation to the Board for 
ESTA’s first electric vehicle soon. The target service for the new EV is Bishop 
DAR. 

Service 

Passenger loads are no longer restricted, and standees are permitted on ESTA 
buses. ESTA offices are now open to the public. Masks are still required on 
public transit, except for open-air trolleys, such as Lakes Basin. Time and 
funds were spent to prepare for a restricted-load summer on Reds Meadow. 
It is too late to revise all the brochures which include 5-hour passes instead 
of day passes, and temporarily increased pricing. MMSA developed a 
reservation system to help control crowding and provide a prepaid ticket sales 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item A-1 

 
A-1-2 

 

opportunity for visitors. While the lifted restrictions allow standees, the 
reservation system will remain in place as a pilot program this summer. 

Unmet Needs Process 

The Transportation Development Act provides ESTA with revenue from sales 
tax and diesel fuel tax. One of the standards required to receive this funding 
is conducting the Unmet Needs process. The money flows through the LTC’s 
and they hold the Unmet Needs hearings. This is the standard set by the TDA: 

Mono County Resolution excerpt: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Mono County Local 
Transportation Commission does hereby define "unmet transit needs' as 
a need of Mono County elderly, disabled, low income, youth, and other 
transit dependent groups for transit service that is currently not available 
and, if provided for, would enable the transit dependent person to obtain 
the basic necessities of life primarily within Mono County. "Necessities of 
life" are defined as trips necessary for medical and dental services, 
essential personal business. employment, social service appointment, 
shopping for food or clothing, and social and recreational purposes. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mono County Transportation 
Commission does hereby define "reasonable to meet" as transit needs 
for the necessities of life which pertain to all public and/or specialized 
transportation services that: 

 
a) can be proven operationally feasible; 

b) can demonstrate community acceptance; 

c) would be available to the general public; 

d) can be proven to be economical; and 

e) can demonstrate cost effectiveness by meeting 

current fare box revenue requirements of the LTC 

within two years 

 

 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item A-1 

 
A-1-3 

 

Mono County QUALIFYING UNMET NEEDS 
 Request Unmet Need Reasonable to 

Meet/Explanation 
Costs/Actions/Solutions 

1. Long Valley – request to 
extend/add a mid-town Bishop 
stop to expresses and 395 routes 
two days a week. 

This is a request for a service for 
the purpose of obtaining 
necessities of life. 

Reasonable to meet. No measurable cost in that the added stop is 
along deadheading routes and very near existing 
service alignments. 

2. Walker and Bridgeport – Continue 
to fund the Dial-A-Ride service 
from Antelope Valley to Bridgeport 
for the purpose of receiving 
medical services. 

This is a request for a service for 
the purpose of obtaining 
necessities of life. 

Reasonable to meet under 
current conditions. The 2020 
Mountain View wildfire 
destroyed the health clinic in 
Walker. Already being met 

This is being offered and will continue. 

3. Provide an employee and visitor 
service between Mammoth and 
June Mountain during winter 
operation. 

This is a request for services to 
obtain necessities of life. 

Reasonable to meet on a 
limited basis. 

The service currently exists on Tuesday’s year 
around. 

4. Provide Spanish language services 
for Eastern Sierra Transit services. 

ESTA adopted a Language 
Assistance Plan in August 2020. 
The Plan is accessible on ESTA’s 
website under the Title VI link. 

Already met This program is active. The website and all ESTA 
services information is translated into Spanish and 
staff has resources to assist Spanish speaking 
passengers. 

5. Provide access to playgrounds 
while Mammoth Creek Park is 
under construction. 

This is a request for service 
expansion to access necessities 
of life, including social and 
recreational purposes. 

Already met The Town of Mammoth Lakes has an extensive free 
transit system providing access to most of the 
Town’s playgrounds and parks. 

NOT CONSIDERED TO BE AN UNMET NEED 
 Request Unmet Need Reasonable to 

Meet/Explanation 
Costs/Actions/Solutions 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item A-1 

 
A-1-4 

 

6. Add a bus stop at 395 and Sonora 
Junction 

This is a request for a service 
expansion, for the purpose of 
getting necessities of life. The 
demand comes from PCT hikers 
wanting a ride. 

Volume does not justify the 
service or expense. 

The primary cost is bus stop infrastructure and 
administrative labor. A conservative estimate on 
cost is $20,000. This assumes Caltrans permitting is 
successful for this location. 

 

Inyo County Unmet Needs Requests 

 

 

Some good suggestions came from the process, and we will work to incorporate what we can.

TRANSIT REQUEST
Unmet 
Need

Reasonable 
to Meet

Comments

Increase Frequency of Lone Pine / Bishop Connection no no service currently exists

Extend Bishop Dial-A-Ride Hours yes no

curently working on grant to fund the 
expansion. However, the TDA allocated 
to ESTA may fund a modest expansion. 

Weekend US395 Service no no
Expansion is planned, but service already 
exists on weekdays.

Trailhead Service to Whitney Portal yes no not operationally feasible at this time
Trailhead Service to Horseshoe Meadows yes no not operationally feasible at this time
Trailhead Service to Onion Valley yes no not operationally feasible at this time
Trailhead Service to Glacier Lodge yes no not operationally feasible at this time
Fixed Route Service in Bishop no no Dial-a-ride currently serves the city.
Better Technology / Phone System for Dial-A-Ride no no while system is antiquated, it does exist.
White Mountain Research Station Dial-A-Ride Service yes yes service is initiated.
Owens River / Poleta Rd. Service yes no not operationally feasible at this time



 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject: Financial Report – FY 2020/21 

Initiated by: Karie Bentley, Administration Manager 

 
 

 

The year-to-date roll-up, fund balance reports and year-end forecast for the 2020/21 
fiscal year are included on the following pages. Reports are as of June 21, 2021.  
 
COVID Relief funds exceed budget estimates. It is anticipated that this funding 
will cover this year’s budget shortfall with some funds left over for next year’s 
budget as well. The funds are available on reimbursement basis. 
 
Overall, the fuel cost per gallon is running at around 21% below budget. The low 
actual expense on the financial reports for fuel and maintenance is primarily a 
result of not yet being in receipt of invoices from the Town of Mammoth Lakes for 
the months of March through June.   
 
The year-end forecast of ESTA’s capital revenue and expenditures has been 
updated. Of the ten buses ESTA expected to purchase this year, only one was 
received. Two buses are set to arrive in August 2021 and seven are still awaiting 
contracts. These expenses will be included in the FY 2021-22 budget.  
 
The Administration Building will not incur expenses this fiscal year.  
 
The table below details the year-to-date revenue and expenses by budget line 
item and includes a year-end forecast.  

 

June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item #A-2

A-2-1



Financial information as of: 6/21/2021 % of Fiscal Year: 98%
153299 - EASTERN SIERRA TRANSIT - ROLL UP
OPERATING FY20/21 % of Year End YE Forecast
Revenue  Budget YTD Actual Balance  Budget Forecast Variance Comments

4061 LOCAL TRANSPORTATION TAX 985,757          897,141              88,616            91% 985,757               -                 

4065 STATE TRANSIT ASST 321,219          230,770              90,449            72% 266,067               (55,152)         

August Estimate came it at $55,152 

less than budgeted. 

4301 INTEREST FROM TREASURY 12,000            30,996                (18,996)           258% 30,996                 18,996           

4498 STATE GRANTS 44,520            44,520                -                  100% 44,520                 -                 Paid in advance.

4499 STATE OTHER 73,910            54,977                18,933            74% 76,569                 2,659             

August estimate came in a bit higher 

than the January estimate.

4555 FEDERAL GRANTS 1,269,256       15,258                1,253,998      1% 1,549,824            280,568         

Some funds have been invoiced, staff 

shortages are affecting our ability to 

invoice promptly. 

4599 OTHER AGENCIES 1,044,268       749,907              294,361          72% 1,002,668            (41,600)         

$41,600 of budget is Capital for Trolley 

Match which will not be purchased 

this year.

4747 INSURANCE PAYMENTS -                   21,702                (21,702)           21,702                 21,702           Insurance payments 

4819 SERVICES & FEES 1,385,410       1,296,121           89,289            94% 1,385,410            -                 

4959 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 12,000            13,547                (1,547)             113% 12,000                 -                 

4999 PRIOR YEARS REIMBURSEMENTS -                   304                      (304)                304                       304                

Revenue Total: 5,148,340       3,355,243          1,793,097      65% 5,375,817           227,477         

Relief funds should balance the 

budget this year

FY20/21 % of Year End YE Forecast

Operating Expenditure: Budget YTD Actual Balance  Budget Forecast Variance Comments

5001 SALARIED EMPLOYEES 1,467,779       1,198,533           269,246          82%

5003 OVERTIME 65,684            52,881                12,803            81%

5005 HOLIDAY OVERTIME 124,696          90,627                34,069            73%
5012 PART TIME EMPLOYEES 455,497          377,435              78,062            83%

Wages subtotal 2,113,656       1,719,476          394,180          81% 2,113,656           -                 Service reductions=less payroll
5021 RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY 54,088            35,860                18,228            66% 54,088                 -                 
5022 PERS RETIREMENT 260,870          166,379              94,491            64% 260,870               -                 May expenses not reflected
5031 MEDICAL INSURANCE 249,640          172,580              77,060            69% 249,640               -                 May expenses not reflected
5043 OTHER BENEFITS 33,351            28,455                4,896              85% 33,351                 -                 
5045 COMPENSATED ABSENCE EXPENSE 189,999          120,222              69,777            63% 189,999               -                 

5047 EMPLOYEE INCENTIVES 2,250              5,085                  (2,835)             226% 2,250                   -                 

Error in OneSolution, Auditors are 

fixing. Budget is fine.
5111 CLOTHING 1,000              339                      661                 34% 1,000                   -                 
5152 WORKERS COMPENSATION 120,220          120,000              220                 100% 120,220               220                Insurance is prepaid for the year.

June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item #A-2

A-2-2



FY20/21 % of Year End YE Forecast
Operating Expenditure: Budget YTD Actual Balance  Budget Forecast Variance Comments

5154 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 75,000            29,233                45,767            39% 75,000                 -                 

5158 INSURANCE PREMIUM 219,580          206,124              13,456            94% 219,580               13,456           

Insurance is prepaid. Property 

insurance less than estimated.

5171 MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT 611,000          461,380              177,943          76% 611,000               -                 

TOML bills for March-June have not 

been received.  $28K rebuild shown in 

the capital section under "vehicle" has 

been manually added here as it was 

paid for with operating funds and this 

budget.
5173 MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT-MATER 18,400            3,412                  14,988            19% 18,400                 -                 
5191 MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 5,000              294                      4,706              6% 5,000                   -                 
5211 MEMBERSHIPS 1,300              1,035                  265                 80% 1,300                   -                 
5232 OFFICE & OTHER EQUIP < $5,000 12,050            5,879                  6,171              49% 12,050                 -                 
5238 OFFICE SUPPLIES 7,000              5,367                  1,633              77% 7,000                   -                 
5253 ACCOUNTING & AUDITING SERVICE 49,400            39,375                10,025            80% 49,400                 -                 
5260 HEALTH - EMPLOYEE PHYSICALS 5,890              4,518                  1,372              77% 5,890                   -                 
5263 ADVERTISING 34,000            30,354                3,646              89% 34,000                 -                 
5265 PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE 219,694          43,469                176,225          20% 219,694               -                 Includes funds for SRTP & CHSP
5291 OFFICE, SPACE & SITE RENTAL 174,844          148,001              26,843            85% 174,844               -                 
5311 GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSE 82,680            55,127                27,553            67% 82,680                 -                 
5326 LATE FEES & FINANCE CHARGES -                   105                      (105)                0% (105)                     (105)               Will add budget next year.
5331 TRAVEL EXPENSE 3,225              755                      2,470              23% 3,225                   -                 
5332 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 29,355            13,939                15,416            47% 29,355                 -                 
5351 UTILITIES 60,000            55,695                4,305              93% 60,000                 -                 

5352 FUEL & OIL 474,307          289,819              184,488          61% 474,307               -                 

Have not received TOML bills for 

January- March

5539 OTHER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS 52,332            43,413                8,919              83% 52,332                 -                 

$9K for 2021 Reds and $43K OPEB 

Trust
5901 CONTINGENCIES 50,700            -                      50,700            0% 50,700                 -                 

Expenditure Total: 5,210,831       3,805,691          1,433,463      73% 5,210,726           Includes $28K rebuild from below.

TRANSFERS FY20/21 % of Year End YE Forecast
Expenditure Budget YTD Actual Balance  Budget Forecast Variance Comments

5798 CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 123,490          123,490              -                  1             123,490               -                 This transfer has been made.
Expenditure Total: 123,490          123,490              -                  1             123,490               -                 
NET TRANSFERS 246,980              

0                           
Relief funds will likely balance the budget.

Projected Revenue less Projected Expenses & Capital Replacement Transfers: Budget was approved with a $269,191 deficit.

June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item #A-2

A-2-3



CAPITAL ACCOUNT FY20/21 % of Year End YE Forecast
Revenue Budget YTD Actual Balance  Budget Forecast Variance Comments

4066 PTMISEA 90,319            -                      90,319            0% -                        (90,319)         

Reprograming for a bus, will include in 

FY 21/22 budget
4067 STATE TRANSIT ASST-CAPITAL 355,378          -                      355,378          0% -                        (355,378)       Vehicle matching funds 
4495 STATE GRANTS - CAPITAL 52,959            52,959                -                  100% 52,959                 -                 LCTOP Electric Vehicle

4557 FEDERAL GRANTS - CAPITAL 2,084,555       235,761              1,848,794      11% 235,761               (1,848,794)    

Building (5339b) and vehicles(5310, 

5339a)
Revenue Total: 2,583,211       288,720              2,294,491      11% 288,720               (2,294,491)    

Capital Expenditures
5640 STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS 704,593          -                      704,593          0% -                        704,593         Bishop Admin Building
5650 EQUIPMENT -                   -                      -                  0% -                        -                 

5655 VEHICLES 1,961,828       305,689              1,656,139      0% 305,689               1,656,139     

New Vehicles (5310, 5339(a)/savings) 

and $28,323 engine rebuild, this will 

be paid for with operating revenue
Expenditure Total: 2,666,421       305,689              2,360,732      11% 305,689               2,360,732     

Projected Capital  Revenue Less Projected Expenses : 52,954           

These are funds for future LCTOP E-

Vehicle

June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item #A-2

A-2-4



ActualBudget %EncumbranceDescription

As of 6/21/2021

Budget to Actuals with Encumbrances by Key/Obj
COUNTY OF INYO

Object

GLLedger:

Balance
153298 - ESTA - BUDGETKey:

OPERATING
Revenue
Expenditure

0.000.00 0.00 0.00OPERATINGNET

CAPITAL ACCOUNT
Revenue

0.000.00 0.00 0.00CAPITAL ACCOUNTNET
153299 - EASTERN SIERRA TRANSITKey:

OPERATING
Revenue

0.00 91.01985,757.00LOCAL TRANSPORTATION TAX 88,616.084061 897,140.92
0.00 71.84321,219.00STATE TRANSIT ASST 90,449.004065 230,770.00
0.00 258.2912,000.00INTEREST FROM TREASURY (18,995.72)4301 30,995.72
0.00 100.0044,520.00STATE GRANTS 0.004498 44,520.00
0.00 74.3873,910.00STATE OTHER 18,932.684499 54,977.32
0.00 1.201,269,256.00FEDERAL GRANTS 1,253,997.874555 15,258.13
0.00 71.811,044,268.00OTHER AGENCIES 294,360.874599 749,907.13
0.00 0.000.00INSURANCE PAYMENTS (21,702.47)4747 21,702.47
0.00 93.551,385,410.00SERVICES & FEES 89,289.334819 1,296,120.67
0.00 112.8912,000.00MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE (1,547.03)4959 13,547.03
0.00 0.000.00PRIOR YEARS REIMBURSEMENTS (303.89)4999 303.89

5,148,340.00 3,355,243.28 1,793,096.720.00 65.17Revenue Total: 
Expenditure

0.00 81.651,467,779.00SALARIED EMPLOYEES 269,245.785001 1,198,533.22
0.00 80.5065,684.00OVERTIME 12,802.875003 52,881.13
0.00 72.67124,696.00HOLIDAY OVERTIME 34,068.765005 90,627.24
0.00 82.86455,497.00PART TIME EMPLOYEES 78,062.115012 377,434.89
0.00 66.3054,088.00RETIREMENT & SOCIAL SECURITY 18,227.605021 35,860.40
0.00 63.77260,870.00PERS RETIREMENT 94,491.455022 166,378.55
0.00 69.13249,640.00MEDICAL INSURANCE 77,059.955031 172,580.05
0.00 85.3233,351.00OTHER BENEFITS 4,895.655043 28,455.35
0.00 63.27189,999.00COMPENSATED ABSENCE EXPENSE 69,777.135045 120,221.87
0.00 226.002,250.00EMPLOYEE INCENTIVES (2,835.11)5047 5,085.11
0.00 33.901,000.00CLOTHING 660.975111 339.03
0.00 99.81120,220.00WORKERS COMPENSATION 220.005152 120,000.00
0.00 38.9775,000.00UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE 45,766.845154 29,233.16
0.00 93.87219,580.00INSURANCE PREMIUM 13,456.005158 206,124.00
0.00 70.87611,000.00MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT 177,943.235171 433,056.77
0.00 18.5418,400.00MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT- 14,988.355173 3,411.65
0.00 5.875,000.00MAINTENANCE OF STRUCTURES 4,706.045191 293.96
0.00 79.611,300.00MEMBERSHIPS 265.005211 1,035.00
0.00 48.7912,050.00OFFICE & OTHER EQUIP < $5,000 6,170.695232 5,879.31
0.00 76.667,000.00OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,633.465238 5,366.54
0.00 79.7049,400.00ACCOUNTING & AUDITING SERVICE 10,025.005253 39,375.00
0.00 76.705,890.00HEALTH - EMPLOYEE PHYSICALS 1,372.005260 4,518.00
0.00 89.2734,000.00ADVERTISING 3,645.915263 30,354.09
0.02 19.78219,694.00PROFESSIONAL & SPECIAL SERVICE 176,224.845265 43,469.14
0.00 84.64174,844.00OFFICE, SPACE & SITE RENTAL 26,843.165291 148,000.84

GL8006: Fin Stmt Budget to Actual with Encumbrance

Page

22

Date:

Time:

06/21/2021

10:44:24

User: DVIDAL - Dawn Vidal

Report:

June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item #A-2

A-2-5



ActualBudget %EncumbranceDescription

As of 6/21/2021

Budget to Actuals with Encumbrances by Key/Obj
COUNTY OF INYO

Object

GLLedger:

Balance
0.00 66.6782,680.00GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSE 27,552.965311 55,127.04
0.00 0.000.00LATE FEES & FINANCE CHARGES (104.74)5326 104.74
0.00 23.423,225.00TRAVEL EXPENSE 2,469.545331 755.46
0.00 47.4829,355.00MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 15,415.815332 13,939.19
0.00 92.8260,000.00UTILITIES 4,305.185351 55,694.82
0.00 61.10474,307.00FUEL & OIL 184,487.775352 289,819.23
0.00 82.9552,332.00OTHER AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS 8,919.005539 43,413.00
0.00 0.0050,700.00CONTINGENCIES 50,700.005901 0.00

5,210,831.00 3,777,367.78 1,433,463.200.02 72.49Expenditure Total: 

359,633.52(62,491.00) (422,124.50) (0.02)OPERATINGNET

NON-OPERATING
Revenue

0.000.00 0.00 0.00NON-OPERATINGNET

CAPITAL ACCOUNT
Revenue

0.00 0.0090,319.00PTMISEA 90,319.004066 0.00
0.00 0.00355,378.00STATE TRANSIT ASST-CAPITAL 355,378.004067 0.00
0.00 100.0052,959.00STATE GRANTS - CAPITAL 0.004495 52,959.00
0.00 11.302,084,555.00FEDERAL GRANTS - CAPITAL 1,848,793.624557 235,761.38

2,583,211.00 288,720.38 2,294,490.620.00 11.17Revenue Total: 
Expenditure

0.00 0.00704,593.00STRUCTURES & IMPROVEMENTS 704,593.005640 0.00
0.00 15.581,961,828.00VEHICLES 1,656,138.845655 305,689.16

2,666,421.00 305,689.16 2,360,731.840.00 11.46Expenditure Total: 

(66,241.22)(83,210.00) (16,968.78) 0.00CAPITAL ACCOUNTNET

TRANSFERS
Revenue

0.00 0.000.00CAPITAL REPLACEMENT (123,490.00)4798 123,490.00
0.00 123,490.00 (123,490.00)0.00 0.00Revenue Total: 

Expenditure
0.00 100.00123,490.00CAPITAL REPLACEMENT 0.005798 123,490.00

123,490.00 123,490.00 0.000.00 100.00Expenditure Total: 

(123,490.00)0.00 123,490.00 0.00TRANSFERSNET

169,902.30(269,191.00) (439,093.28) (0.02)Total:153299

GL8006: Fin Stmt Budget to Actual with Encumbrance

Page

23

Date:

Time:

06/21/2021

10:44:24

User: DVIDAL - Dawn Vidal

Report:

June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item #A-2

A-2-6



Encumbrances

Fund

Balance

UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

1100,1105,1160 Undesignated1000

COUNTY OF INYO

Fund

Balance

1200

Expenses

Prepaid

2000

Accounts

Receivable

Loans

Receivable

1140

06/30/2021AS OF

PayablePayable

Accounts Loans

2140

Deferred

Revenue

2200

ComputedClaim on

Cash

ESTA EASTERN SIERRA TRANSIT AUTHORI-

2,859,142EASTERN SIERRA TRANSIT 2,589,3121532 2,859,142287,866 34,52716,491

1,522,844ESTA ACCUMULATED 1,522,8441533 1,522,844

534,125ESTA GENERAL RESERVE 534,1251534 534,125

213,648ESTA BUDGET STAB 213,6481535 213,648

112,644REDS MEADOW ROAD 112,6441536 112,644

(4,738)NON-EMERENCY TRAN REIM 6,3036820 (4,738)11,041

(4,928)BISHOP YARD-ESTA 226821 (4,928)4,950

143,658LCTOP-ELECTRIC VEHICLE 143,6586822 143,658

9,912ESTA-LCTOP 8,1136824 9,9122,299 500

70,908BISHOP ADMIN BUILDING 70,9086825 70,908

5,457,215TotalsESTA 5,457,215290,165 34,527 16,49116,4915,201,577

5,457,21516,491 5,457,215290,165 34,52716,4915,201,577Grand Totals

1Page:DVIDAL Dawn Vidal
GL8001: Undesignated Fund Balances

Current Date:
Current Time:

06/21/2021User:
10:43:43Report:

June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item #A-2

A-2-7



June 25, 2021 
Item A-3 

 

A-3-1 

STAFF REPORT 
 
Subject:  Return to In-Person Meetings 
Presented by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 

 

Background 

Following the vote by the Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board to 
adopt revised COVID-19 Prevention Emergency Temporary Standards that 
reflect the state’s latest COVID-19 public health order, Governor Gavin 
Newsom signed an executive order (N-09-01) lifting most restrictions on 
masks and physical distancing, except for certain employees during 
outbreaks. Unless they show symptoms, fully vaccinated employees do not 
need to be offered testing or be excluded from work after close contact with 
a COVID-19-positive person. 

Among other updates, Cal/OSHA’s revisions align with the latest guidance 
from the California Department of Public Health – based on guidelines issued 
by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention – on face coverings and 
eliminate physical distancing requirements.  

Both Inyo and Mono Counties have followed the states move Beyond the 
Blueprint for Safer Economy and lifted physical distancing requirements for 
meeting the size of our board meetings. Even though most of us have become 
accustom to virtual meetings, there is a percentage of the population that see 
this as a barrier to attendance. In person public meetings should begin as 
soon as possible. 

Recommendation 

In light of the lifted physical distancing requirement, and unless the Board 
disapproves, the August 13, 2021 Board meeting will be in person in Bishop 
at 11:00am. The July 9, 2021 meeting is expected to be very light with only 
the Budget and some minor items. 

Discussion 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item A-4 

A-4-1 
 

  
         

STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject:   ESTA Bus Stop Sign 
 
Initiated by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
  
The need for a new sign and marketing was initiated by our move the 
Centennial Plaza Transit Center in Sparks, NV. ESTA does not have a 
consistent bus stop sign throughout the service area. The Town of Mammoth 
Lakes has indicated that a new ESTA sign would be welcomed. From a 
branding standpoint, a regular and easily recognizable bus stop sign is 
essential. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The designing itself was relatively inexpensive, with the most expensive quote 
coming in at $500. The quotes included the design of a poster for the Transit 
Center in addition to the bus stop sign. To make 100 signs will cost around 
$7,500. Labor to mount the signs at the bus stops is expected to cost around 
$2,500. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Three firms were asked to design a new sign: 
 

1. Mountain Studio  
2. Sharpend Design 
3. Boone Graphis 

 
Each design is attached for our consideration. 
 
 
 
 



760-872-1901
Estransit.com

BUS
STOP



760-872-1901
Estransit.com

BUS
STOP



760-872-1901
Estransit.com

BUS
STOP



760-872-1901
Estransit.com

BUS
STOP





BUS STOP
(760) 872-1901    estransit.com



BUS STOP
(760) 872-1901    estransit.com



BUS STOP
(760) 872-1901    estransit.com



June 25, 2021 
Item A-5 

A-5-1 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Subject:   Ridership Report April 2021 
Presented by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 
 
Executive Summary 
 
Unsurprisingly, overall ridership increased in April compared to last year. This is very 
encouraging, but we are still 58% down from 2019 pre-Covid numbers. Of Course, 2019 was a 
stellar year for snow.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Route
Pre-Covid 
April 2019

Covid        
2020

Current      
2021

Change 
Current vs. 
Last year

Change 
Current vs 
Pre-Covid

% Change 
Current vs 
Pre-Covid

BEN 22 2 24 22 0 9.09%
BISDAR 3,693 1,354 2,551 1,197 -2,496 -30.92%
BISFR 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
BPTCAR 19 20 2 -18 -37 -89.47%
JUNE 54 0 0 0 -54 -100.00%
LANC 487 73 237 164 -323 -51.33%
LP/BIS 213 106 220 114 -99 3.29%
LPDAR 396 299 429 130 -266 8.33%
MAMFR 19,018 2,942 7,942 5,000 -14,018 -58.24%
MDAR 498 28 213 185 -313 -57.23%
MEASU 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
MMSA 63,132 0 24,578 24,578 -38,554 -61.07%
MULE 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
MXP 380 96 195 99 -281 -48.68%
NRIDER 309 57 178 121 -188 -42.39%
OTR 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
REDS 0 0 0 0 0 0.00%
RENO 545 84 467 383 -162 -14.31%
WLK 117 25 10 -15 -132 -91.45%
Total 88,883 5,086 37,046 31,960 -56,923 -58.32%

April Ridership Report



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Subject:   Strategic Business Plan Report 
 
Initiated by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In August 2020, the ESTA Board approved a Strategic Business Plan for the 
agency. The document is scheduled for review in 2023. The Plan refreshed the 
organizations mission, vision, and performance goals. 
 
ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION: 
Several goals are under development, such as a formal succession plan, zero 
emissions plan, on-time performance measurement, and Bishop facility 
project. Training has fallen behind due to COVID-19 challenges, but virtual 
training has been conducted and the recording will be used. 
 
Comments are not meeting goals, however, the goal may not be realistic. 
We received a total of just 16 comments from over 162,000 boardings. This 
may be a goal we revisit. 
 
Productivity is down for obvious reasons, but it is on the rise. 
 
Attached is the current ESTA performance dashboard and full Strategic 
Business Plan. 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-2 
 

 

Category Standard
Reporting 

Cycle Target Current YTD GOAL
Accidents Quarterly 1.00 per 100k miles 0.51 0.74

Safety Hazards Quarterly Address All yes yes
Injuries Quarterly 3-lost work, 3-med only 0,1 0,1

Customer Perception Annual 90%
Productivity Quarterly FR-17, IFR-2, DAR-3, LL-4 16.1,1,2,.4 11.9,1.2,2.4,.4

Service Delivery Quarterly 99% 99.09%
On Time Performance Quarterly DAR-90%, IFR-80%,FR-90% under construction

New Service Annual Research New Ideas yes yes
Comments Quarterly 0.075 0.099 0.101

Constrained Budget Monthly At or Under Budget yes yes

Audit Findings Annual No Findings 0 0

Capital Purchase Annual Subjective yes yes
Recruiting Biannual Subjective yes yes
Training Annual Annual Hours no no

Performance Annual Evaluations*
Internal Policies Annual Address All

Succession Plan Annual Address All
Vehicle Replacement Annual Active Fleet-75%

Road Calls Quarterly 3 per 100,000 miles 2.5 2.8
Attractiveness Annual 90%
Maintenance Quarterly various 87% 87%

Optimal Fleet Size Annual Dispose of Excess

IT Program Annual Subjective yes yes

Bishop Building Quarterly Facility Completed

Zero Emissions Quarterly Plan Completion

Funding Partners Annual ED Evaluation yes yes

Stakeholders Annual ED Evaluation yes yes

SBP Communication Annual ED Evaluation yes yes

under construction

under construction

under construction

ongoing

yes

yes

95.2%

SE
RV

IC
E 

QU
AL

IT
Y 

AN
D 

EF
FI

EN
CY

HU
M

AN
 

RE
SO

UR
CE

S

RE
VE

NU
E 

AN
D 

RE
SO

UR
CE

S

FL
EE

T 
AN

D 
FA

CI
LI

TY
SA

FE
TY

89%

IN
NO

VA
TI

ON
 

AN
D 

DE
SI

GN
LE

AD
ER

SH
IP



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-3 
 

Eastern Sierra Transit Authority 
FY2021‐23 STRATEGIC BUSINESS PLAN 

 
Executive Summary 
This Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA) FY2021‐23 Strategic Business 
Plan is a guiding document intended to define goals and objectives, and to 
measure and track ESTA’s performance. It is a three fiscal year Plan 
incorporating both new and revised standards. It is anticipated that this Plan 
will be reviewed and revised again (as necessary) in mid‐2023 to reflect 
changing conditions. 
 
Background 
In February 2020, members of the ESTA Board and ESTA staff held a workshop 
to craft the elements of the first ESTA Strategic Business Plan. The major 
components of the Plan are the ESTA Vision Statement, Mission Statement, 
Business Direction, and Goals and Objectives. Staff uses the Standards of 
Excellence in the Plan to help guide the organization toward meeting goals 
and objectives through measurable Key Performance Indicators. The goals 
and objectives are premised on the following components: 
 

 
Vision Statement 

 
ESTA is providing high quality regional transportation to 
the residents and visitors while creating the most 
enjoyable and productive employment experience 
possible. All this is accomplished while providing good 
stewardship of public funds and demonstrating a deep 
respect for those we serve. 

 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
The Mission of ESTA is to provide safe, reliable, and customer friendly 
transportation services to the Eastern Sierra Region. This improves and 
enhances the quality of life for the residents and visitors of the area by 
reducing greenhouse gases, reducing traffic congestion, providing much 
needed mobility, supporting the economy, and helping the environment. 
 
 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-4 
 

Business Conditions 
 
COVID-19, Employee attraction and retention, vehicle maintenance and 
replacement, and sustainable revenue define the challenges of the current 
business environment for ESTA in the coming years.  
 
Creating housing for residents and employees has become a critical challenge 
for community leaders as home prices have risen and available land 
decreases. Attracting and retaining ESTA employees is directly connected to 
the scarcity and high cost of housing.  
 
ESTA vehicles are aging at an alarming rate. The majority of our vehicles are 
beyond their useful life. This means the costs of repair and maintenance will 
rise, making the accumulation of reserves for vehicle purchasing difficult. 
Compounding this challenge is California’s Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) Rule 
which requires ESTA to purchase 25% zero emissions vehicles in 2026, and 
100% zero emissions vehicles in 2029. Currently, the ICT limits the 
requirement to vehicles over 14,000 lbs. Only the smallest vans and cutaways 
are less than 14,000 lbs. 
 
The transit revenue landscape is ever changing and uncertain. Each political 
administration brings its own values and priorities to the highest office of the 
nation and the state. Gasoline fuel tax revenues are dropping as vehicles 
become more efficient and technology introduces new fuel sources to the 
market. A vehicle miles tax, based on individual road usage, is being discussed 
as an alternative to inject life back into the much-needed transportation 
revenue stream. How transit benefits from this new revenue source will be an 
important mission for transit leaders and voters. 
 
The Bishop Airport commercialization is a big unknown with many leaders in 
both counties discussing the best plan. Rental cars, rideshare, luxury buses, 
and shuttles will evolve into a mix of services determined by price and 
passenger choices. ESTA’s role in providing air passengers with ground 
transportation will need to be considered carefully. 
 
Finally, the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus has decimated transit ridership 
and it is unknown when the full return of passengers to public transit will 
occur. New measures to keep vehicles and passengers safe is playing a part 
in building public confidence. Ultimately, a vaccine would have the greatest 
positive effect on ridership. 
 
COVID-19, Employee attraction and retention, vehicle maintenance and 
replacement, and sustainable revenue define the challenges of the current 
business environment for ESTA in the coming years.  



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-5 
 

 
Creating housing for residents and employees has become a critical challenge 
for community leaders as home prices have risen and available land 
decreases. Attracting and retaining ESTA employees is directly connected to 
the scarcity and high cost of housing.  
 
ESTA vehicles are aging at an alarming rate. The majority of our vehicles are 
beyond their useful life. This means the costs of repair and maintenance will 
rise, making the accumulation of reserves for vehicle purchasing difficult. 
Compounding this challenge is California’s Innovative Clean Transit (ICT) Rule 
which requires ESTA to purchase 25% zero emissions vehicles in 2026, and 
100% zero emissions vehicles in 2029. Currently, the ICT limits the 
requirement to vehicles over 14,000 lbs. Only the smallest vans and cutaways 
are less than 14,000 lbs. 
 
The transit revenue landscape is ever changing and uncertain. Each political 
administration brings its own values and priorities to the highest office of the 
nation and the state. Gasoline fuel tax revenues are dropping as vehicles 
become more efficient and technology introduces new fuel sources to the 
market. A vehicle miles tax, based on individual road usage, is being discussed 
as an alternative to inject life back into the much-needed transportation 
revenue stream. How transit benefits from this new revenue source will be an 
important mission for transit leaders and voters. 
 
The Bishop Airport commercialization is a big unknown with many leaders in 
both counties discussing the best plan. Rental cars, rideshare, luxury buses, 
and shuttles will evolve into a mix of services determined by price and 
passenger choices. ESTA’s role in providing air passengers with ground 
transportation will need to be considered carefully. 
 
Finally, the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus has decimated transit ridership 
and it is unknown when the full return of passengers to public transit will 
occur. New measures to keep vehicles and passengers safe is playing a part 
in building public confidence. Ultimately, a vaccine would have the greatest 
positive effect on ridership. 
 
Business Direction 
 
1. Safety 
 

“Safety First” is more than a cliché. Our most valuable asset is our 
personnel. Second are our investments including vehicles, office 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-6 
 

equipment, software, security systems, and structures. The preservation 
of all this is our most important goal. 

 
2. Ridership  
 

Without our passengers we have no business. We will approach our 
customer service with an attitude of dignity and respect toward all we 
serve. We will look for opportunities to increase ridership and better serve 
all the communities within our service area. 

 
3. Image and Partnership  
  

ESTA’s image and reputation is a hard-earned commodity that pays 
dividends in employment and credibility. This, in turn, supports our 
partnerships which enable us to conduct our business. Our riders and 
partners depend on us to deliver services with integrity and respect. 
Communication is another key aspect of good image and partnership. 

 
4. Finance  

 
Financial responsibility is necessary to achieve all of ESTA’s business 
goals. Good stewardship of the public funds includes transparency and 
honesty in every transaction. 
 

5. Fleet and Facility 
 
We will operate and maintain a modern and clean fleet and facilities that 
will be pleasing to our customers and a source of pride for our employees 
and our communities. 

 
6. Innovation and Design 
 

Exploring new technologies and accepting new methods of conducting 
business is critical to growth and being competitive.  

 
7. Human Resources 
 

Employees are the heart and soul of ESTA. Professional development, 
communication, and adherence to laws and policies is critical to maintaining 
an excellent workplace. 

 
 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-7 
 

Focused 2021‐23 Strategic Business Plan Goals and 
Objectives 

 
Goal 1: Safety 
 

Objective: 
 

1. Protect ESTA’s employees, customers, and assets through careful and 
safe delivery of services. 

 
Goal 2: Increase Ridership 
 

Objectives: 
 

1. Ensure that persons with disabilities, low income, and seniors have 
adequate mobility. 
 

2. Implement service alternative recommendations from ESTA’s Short 
Range Transit Plan, the Regional Transportation Plan and other technical 
studies completed in each region in the Counties. 
 

3. Continue to explore alternative transit routes and modes using emerging 
technologies to address underperforming and rural needs. 

 
4. Evaluate route scheduling to maximize the convenience of transfers 

between the various transit services in the region. 
 
Goal 3: Improve Image and Partnership 
 

Objectives: 
 

1. Build ESTA’s reputation as a premier employer. 
 

2. Develop a well‐executed image‐building campaign with a recognizable 
brand for public transportation. 

 
3. Continue successful partnerships with communities, cities and counties, 

other public agencies, businesses and schools. 
 

4. Complete an annual Community Survey to address current and potential 
customer needs. 
 

5. Complete an annual Employee Survey to address workplace needs. 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-8 
 

 
6. Improve public communications and information about ESTA services, 

and seek input through public outreach. 
 
Goal 4: Ensure Financial Success 
 

Objectives: 
 

1. Oversee the budget with a constrained and sustainable approach, while 
maintaining healthy reserves. 
 

2. Secure reliable funding.  
 

3. Secure capital improvements such as facilities and vehicles to insure the 
long-term viability of ESTA. 
 

4. Ensure fair compensation for employees and communicate ESTA’s 
employment benefits clearly. 

 
Goal 5: Conduct Planning and Improve Efficiency 
 

Objectives: 
 

1. Consolidate and streamline operations and administrative policies to 
improve efficiency and effectiveness of public transportation throughout 
the region. 

 
2. Promote public transportation as part of the lifestyle evolution needed 

to confront climate change. 
 
3. Develop a Short Range Transit Plan that covers the region and addresses 

transportation issues. 
 
4. Develop a Coordinated Human Services Plan targeting people with 

disabilities, older adults, and people with low incomes that addresses 
any gaps in service or underserved populations. 

 
5. Meet or exceed KPIs that include the following Standards Categories: 

Service Quality and Efficiency, Resources and Revenue, Safety, Human 
Resources, Fleet and Facilities, Leadership. 
 

6. Begin the engineering and design phase for a long‐term operations 
facility in Bishop. Secure grant funding and other financing to construct 
the facility by the Fall of 2021. 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-9 
 

 
Goal 6: Explore Innovation and Design 
 

Objectives: 
 

1. Sustain and continue to improve the Intelligent Transportation Systems 
(ITS) program to improve service quality and provide efficiencies. 
 

2. Begin planning for a zero emissions fleet at Mammoth, Bishop, Walker, 
and Lone Pine Bus Yards. Develop site infrastructure plans in 
coordination with The Town of Mammoth Lakes, Inyo and Mono 
Counties, and The City of Bishop. 
 

3. Identify and secure funding to sustain and expand the ITS Program. 
 

4. Track and manage zero emission vehicle maintenance, expenses, 
performance, and replacement.  
 

Goal 7: Improve Operations and Measurement 
 

Objectives: 
 

1. Achieve ESTA Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to improve existing 
service (On Time Performance, Customer Comments, Service 
Interruptions, Vehicle Collision Rate, etc.). 

 
2. Continue to analyze data to improve service efficiencies and 

effectiveness.  
  



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-10 
 

Focused 2021‐23 Strategic Business Plan  
 

Standards of Excellence 
 
Section 1: Safety  
 
We recognize the tremendous importance of safety in the operation of ESTA 
service to our customers and communities. Therefore, the safety of our 
customers and employees will be an organizational priority and we will be 
proactive in promoting system safety. 
 
Standard 1: Rate of preventable vehicle collisions will not exceed 1.0 per 
100,000 miles. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Rate shall be tracked monthly and reported quarterly to the ESTA 
Board. 

 
Standard 2: Address all safety hazards identified by the Safety Committee. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• List shall be compiled with action items and timelines and reported 
quarterly by the Executive Director to the Board. 

 
Standard 3: Preventable workers compensation lost‐time claims will not 
exceed 3 annually, and preventable medical‐only claims will not exceed 3 
annually. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• All work comp claims shall be duly investigated and immediately 
reported by the Administration Manager to our carrier. Measured and 
reported quarterly by the Executive Director to the Board. 

 
Standard 4: Customer and community perception of system safety will be 
at least 90%. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• As measured in an annual Community Perception Survey and reported 
by the Executive Director to the Board. 

 
Section 2: Service Quality and Efficiency 
 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-11 
 

We will deliver dependable, customer focused and efficient transit services to 
the communities that we serve. Further, we will look for opportunities to 
deploy innovative new service within budgetary constraints. 
 
Standard 1: The Productivity (passengers per vehicle service hour) 
standards are presented below for regularly‐scheduled services: 
 

A. Regional intercity fixed‐route services shall be 2.0 or greater. 
• 395 Reno 
• 395 Lancaster 
• Mammoth Express 
• Lone Pine Express 

 
B. Local fixed‐route shall be 17.0 or greater. 

• Mammoth Lakes fixed routes (Summer and Winter) 
 
C. Dial-a-Ride services will be 3.0 or greater. 
 
D. Life-Line services will be 4.0 or greater. 

• Tecopa 
• Bridgeport to Carson City 
• Benton to Bishop 
• Walker to Mammoth 

 
E. Market Development routes will be assessed on a three-year schedule. 

• Year one is to be considered a marketing year with efforts to 
communicate the existence and purpose of the service. 
• Year two will indicate the potential of the service with ridership either 
increasing or decreasing from year one. 
• Year three will be the final year of the pilot designation of the service. 
This year may not be delivered if year two experiences declines in 
ridership without obvious and significant reasons for the decline.  

 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Reviewed monthly and reported quarterly by Executive Director to the 
Board. 

 
Standard 2: The Service Delivery rate for all regularly‐scheduled services 
shall be 99% or greater. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Reviewed monthly and reported quarterly by Executive Director to the 
Board. 

 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-12 
 

Standard 3: On‐Time Performance (OTP) – Where technology is not available 
for measuring OTP, manual observations may be conducted. “On Time” for 
Fixed Route (Intercity 395 Routes and Express Routes) is defined as less than 
one minute early and no later than 6 minutes after any published time.  
  

• Dial-a-Ride services shall be 90% or greater with trips less that 30-
minute wait time. 
• Express and Intercity Regional Fixed Route services shall be 80% or 
better. 
• Local fixed route services shall be 90% or better. 

 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Reviewed monthly and reported quarterly by Executive Director to the 
Board. 

 
Standard 4: ESTA will make consistent efforts to explore new service and 
service delivery options as well as work with regional efficiencies in the 
delivery of transportation to the jurisdictions. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Reported annually by the Executive Director to the Board. 
 
Standard 5: ESTA will measure customer comments taken by phone, email, 
and verbal report. Compliments will not be included in the ratio, but will be 
reported separately. The standard is .075 comments per 1,000 boardings. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Reviewed monthly and reported quarterly by the Executive Director to 
the Board. 

 
Section 3: Revenue and Resources  
 
While providing excellent service to our customers and communities, we will 
do so within the financial resources available to us. The financial health of 
the organization will not be compromised, and we will work to deliver good 
value for the taxpayers’ investment in ESTA. 
 
Standard 1: The annual operating budget will be based upon projected 
revenue and the total operating cost will not exceed the budget adopted by 
the Board. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Tracked monthly in financial statements and reported monthly by the 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-13 
 

Administrative Manager to the Board. 
 
Standard 2: No significant annual fiscal and compliance audit findings. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Administrative Manager will report any negative audit findings to the 
ESTA Board as they occur and take measures to correct them. 

 
Standard 3: Ensure that all capital procurements provide good value to our 
customers and our employees. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Evaluated through annual Community Perception Survey, feedback from 
communities and review of the 5‐year capital program by the ESTA Board. 

 
Section 4: Human Resources  
 
Our employees are the foundation of the organization. We will support our 
employees in achieving excellence through training and development, 
teamwork, and continuous efforts at effective communication while treating 
each with integrity and dignity. 
 
Standard 1: Recruit, promote and retain highly qualified employees to 
achieve our service standards. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Biannual assessment by Administrative Clerk and reported to the 
Board. 

 
Standard 2: Provide continuous development of skills and capabilities 
through ongoing training and development programs that foster personal and 
professional growth. Training plans are developed as part of annual budget‐
making process, according the following minimum standards: 

A. Utility: 8 Hours per Utility person annually. 
B. Operations Supervisors: 24 Hours annually. 
C. Bus Operators: 8 Hours Annually. 
D. Administration: 24 Hours per employee annually. 

 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Supervisor evaluates annually for achievement of training objectives 
and reporting to the Board. 

 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-14 
 

Standard 3: Support employees through creating a work environment which 
promotes professional development and encourages performance. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Provide annual performance evaluations to administrative staff. 
Conduct annual Employee Survey and report to the Board. 

 
Standard 4: Continue to develop ESTA policies, contracts, and procedures. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Measured by completion and development of policies, contracts, and 
procedures. Reported annually by the Executive Director to the Board. 

 
Standard 5: Develop Succession Plan to smooth staff changes and provide 
cross training for more efficient operations. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Measured by development and progress of a Succession Plan. 
Reported annually by the Executive Director to the Board. 

 
Section 5: Fleet and Facility 
 
We will operate and maintain a modern and clean fleet and facilities that will 
be pleasing to our customers and a source of pride for our employees and our 
communities. 
 
Standard 1: If funding permits, ESTA will replace revenue vehicles when 
they reach the useful life minimums in terms of service years or miles. We 
will strive for 75% of the active fleet within their useful life years. Maintain a 
Five-year Capital Replacement Plan and Transit Asset Management Plan. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Measured annually by the Executive Director and reported to the 
Board. 

 
Standard 2: Road calls will not exceed 3 per 100,000 revenue service miles. 
A road call is defined as all mechanical or other vehicle‐related failures that 
affect the completion of a scheduled revenue trip or the start of the next 
scheduled revenue trip, including failures during deadheading and layover. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Measured monthly and reported quarterly by the Executive Director to 
the Board. 

 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-15 
 

Standard 3: Maintain a clean, attractive fleet. Maintain our facilities so that 
they are safe and appealing to customers and employees. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Measured annually by Employee and Customer Perception Surveys. 
Reported annually by the Executive Director to the Board 

 
Standard 4: Achieve all federal and state‐mandated maintenance 
minimums, as well as vendor recommended maintenance schedules, for our 
fleet and facilities. The following standards apply: 
 

A. No negative CHP Annual Terminal Inspection or TDA Triennial 
Performance Audit findings. 
B. Preventative maintenance schedules for all equipment shall be done on 
a timely basis  

• 3,000-mile intervals or 45 days for GPPV vehicles 
• 5,000-mile/60-day intervals for Mammoth fleet and Bishop 

Cutaways. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• As tracked by the Operations Supervisors, and reported quarterly by 
the Executive Director to the Board. 

 
Standard 5: Optimize fleet size by disposing of excess vehicles as new 
vehicles are obtained. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Reported annually by the Executive Director to the Board. 
 
Section 6: Innovation and Design 
 
Standard 1: Sustain and continue to improve the Intelligent Transportation 
Systems (ITS) program to improve service quality and provide efficiencies. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Measured by efforts to explore new technologies. Reported annually by 
the Executive Director to the Board. 

 
Standard 2: Construct a new administration facility in Bishop by fall of 2021. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Measured by the completion of the facility. Progress reported quarterly 
by Executive Director to the Board. 

 



June 25, 2021 
Item A-6 

 

A-6-16 
 

Standard 3: Begin planning for a zero emissions fleet at Mammoth, Bishop, 
Walker, and Lone Pine Bus Yards. Develop site infrastructure plans in 
coordination with The Town of Mammoth Lakes, Inyo and Mono Counties, and 
The City of Bishop. 
 
Measurement: Objective. 

• Measured by the completion of the Zero Emissions Plan. 
 

Section 7: Leadership  
 
We will strive to be one of the nation’s leading small transit operators. We will 
work to maintain collaborative relationships within the industry, within our 
community, and with our stakeholders. We will develop future leaders from 
within our organization. 
 
Standard 1: Maintain cooperative relationships with federal, state and local 
funding agencies. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Will be reviewed by staff and ESTA Board through Executive Director’s 
evaluation. 

 
Standard 2: Develop partnerships with stakeholders, community leaders and 
decision makers, while keeping them well informed of the integral role of ESTA 
and contributions to the communities that we serve. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Will be reviewed by staff and ESTA Board through Executive Director’s 
evaluation. 

 
Standard 3: Promote effective internal communications and promote the 
vision, mission, and values of the organization. 
 
Measurement: Subjective. 

• Will be reviewed by staff and ESTA Board through Executive Director’s 
evaluation. 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Board is requested to accept the Strategic Business Plan report as 
information only. 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item A-7 

 
A-1-1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
Subject:  Staff Evaluations 
Presented by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 

Administration: 

Background 

Our Strategic Business Plan calls for staff evaluations, which until now have 
not existed. The attached evaluation form was circulated amongst staff for 
comment. Supervisors will meet with staff for evaluation orientation and 
discussion. The effective period for the evaluations will be July 1, 2021 to June 
30, 2022. 

This process will improve communication and provide clear direction to staff. 
The program includes guidelines on how to administer the evaluations. 



Guidelines for Staff Employee 
Performance Appraisal 

PROCEDURES 

The Performance Appraisal is a formal means of communication between a supervisor and an 
employee that provides an opportunity to acknowledge mutual understanding of job duties and 
responsibilities and to discuss performance expectations and future objectives for the position. The 
performance appraisal process is the culmination of all informal communication and training that has 
occurred during the rating period. Employees are evaluated during the annual performance evaluation 
cycle each July. Supervisors are not limited to established evaluation cycles, but can build on that 
structure to maintain a positive flow of communication and feedback.

 
Employees are normally evaluated once a year, during the annual performance evaluation cycle. 
Special circumstances (exceptional merit or unsatisfactory performance) should, however, be recorded 
for recognition or documentation which may be used for corrective action.  Employees hired within the 
last six months of the annual performance evaluation cycle will be provided a performance memo 
should a performance evaluation not be deemed appropriate, which is at the supervisors discretion.   

Temporary/intermittent employees are evaluated at periodic intervals, at the discretion of the 
supervisor or at the request of the employee. 

FORM CONTENT 

Employee’s Name - The employee’s last and first names, and middle initial, if applicable. 
Title - The job classification held by the employee during the period of evaluation. 
Date - The duration that the performance appraisal covers  
Supervisor’s Name/Title – The employee’s direct supervisor’s name and title. 
Employment Type – Full or part time

Level of Performance Rating Scale 

Please assign a rating for each evaluation criteria listed (seven in total) relative to the position, with 
the left side of the scale indicating non-applicable and the right indicating the level of performance is 
outstanding.

The following definitions for the rating scale are provided as a general guideline: 

Unsatisfactory - The performance is consistently below work expectations, requirements, or 
standards; immediate action by the employee to improve performance is required. Performance at this 
level could result in disciplinary action or non-retention. 

Improvement Needed - The performance does not fully meet work expectations, requirements or 
standards or performance is inconsistent; the employee must improve efforts to meet work standards.  
Continued performance at this level could result in disciplinary action or non-retention.  



Satisfactory - The performance consistently meets work expectations, requirements, or standards. 
Employee’s accomplishments and efforts are at a level which quality performance is expected. This 
rating reflects a determination that the employee makes a solid, positive contribution to the 
department. 

Commendable - The performance consistently meets, but regularly exceeds, work expectations, 
requirements, or standards; shows initiative in additional achievements. 

Outstanding - This rating is reserved for the highest level of performance.  The performance 
substantially and consistently exceeds work expectations, requirements, or standards; employee has a 
consistent record of achievements during the evaluation period which render a significant service to 
ESTA. 

Comments 

In the Comments section, please specifically explain or justify the rating level for that function. This 
explanation is particularly important when a rating of less than “Satisfactory” or "Outstanding" is given. 

Summary Evaluation 

The overall evaluation should represent a summary of the ratings for the job functions and should be 
consistent with these ratings. In assigning an overall evaluation, consideration should be given to the 
importance or critical nature of each job function and/or the percentage of the employee’s overall 
duties which the job function represents. 

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL MEETING 

The performance appraisal meeting is a critical component of the evaluative process. The meeting 
provides the supervisor and employee with an opportunity to engage in an open and constructive 
discussion regarding the employee’s job performance, accomplishments, areas of needed 
improvement, training and development, and future performance goals and expectations. 

It is recommended that the supervisor provide the employee with a draft of the performance appraisal 
prior to the meeting. During the meeting, the supervisor should review the past year’s performance in 
comparison with the previous years performance appraisal section of future goals and objectives.  
Supervisors should also solicit the employee’s comments and suggestions and create an atmosphere in 
which the employee is encouraged to speak candidly and reply to criticisms or suggestions offered by 
the supervisor.  
 

PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL PROCESS 

There are several steps in the evaluation cycle, which may involve the Employee, Supervisor, and 
Executive Director. 

Step 1 - Human Resources generates the Performance Planning and Appraisal through the annual 
performance evaluation cycle process. 
  
Step 2 - Each supervisor completes a Performance Planning and Appraisal, or Performance Memo for 
employees hired within the last six months, if that is deemed more appropriate by the employee’s 
supervisor, for staff employees he/she supervises directly. 



Step 3 – Each supervisor will forward draft appraisals and memos to Human Resources for review and 
consistence purposes.  Once Human Resources has provided clearance to supervisors they can 
proceed to Step 4.   

Step 4 - The supervisor and employee meet to discuss the performance appraisal. Prior to signing the 
form, the employee may include a written response.  Final submission by the employee is to their 
immediate supervisor. A copy of the completed Performance Planning and Appraisal Form is given to 
the employee. 

Step 5 - The Performance Planning and Appraisal are sent to Human Resources for processing and 
are placed in the employee’s permanent personnel file. 



           
 

Performance Planning and Appraisal 
 

Employee’s Name 
      

Title 
 

Date 
      

Supervisor’s Name/Title 
 

          
A.  PERFORMANCE FACTORS 
 
The following section lists areas of accountability to be considered in the overall performance evaluation.   
 
LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE:  Has a rating scale ranging from “unsatisfactory” to “outstanding” and provides a performance 
continuum upon which the incumbent is evaluated. 
 
Within each of the specified areas, please provide a rating for the performance factor and describe significant aspects of 
the individual’s performance in support of this rating.  Not all of the factors can be applied to each position, nor are the 
factors considered exhaustive.  If an area does not apply, please mark the box labeled “Not Applicable”.  Attach extra 
pages to include additional narrative or performance categories, if necessary. 
               
1. MANAGING HUMAN RESOURCES 

Secures cooperation and obtains optimum results through the efforts of co-workers; encourages professional 
development of staff; creates a fair and equitable working environment; demonstrates sensitivity and awareness in 
relating to people; secures trust and respect; develops team work; effectively utilizes human resources to accomplish 
goals and objectives; takes action to provide consistently high service levels. 
 

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 
COMMENTS: 

      



Eastern Sierra Transit Authority  
Performance Planning and Appraisal 

Page 2   7/2021 

                
2. MANAGING FISCAL AND MATERIAL RESOURCES 

Utilizes resources efficiently; demonstrates fiscal responsibility and plans and controls expenditures and materials; 
takes measures to ensure a safe working environment; effectively manages allocated budget. 
 

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 
COMMENTS: 

      

              
3. PROBLEM SOLVING 

Identifies and defines problems; develops and implements effective solutions; appropriately responds to new and 
different situations; applies knowledge to handle complex problem variables and to assess potential outcomes; 
applies creative and original approaches to resolve issues or complaints within this position’s span of authority. 
 

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 
COMMENTS: 

      

  



Eastern Sierra Transit Authority  
Performance Planning and Appraisal 

Page 3   7/2021 

             
4. COMMUNICATION 

Communicates effectively both in writing and in speaking; provides information that is clear, concise and well 
understood; listens well; elicits feedback; encourages collaboration and sharing of information; develops and 
maintains professional working relationships with internal and/or external constituencies. 
 

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 
 
COMMENTS: 

      

          
5. LEADERSHIP 

Accepts responsibility, demonstrates commitment and provides leadership through personal example and professional 
expertise.  Provides clear direction to subordinates on a consistent basis through planning, implementation, 
delegation and assessment.  Efforts are focused on achieving results which contribute to the mission of the ESTA. 
 

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 
COMMENTS: 

      

 



Eastern Sierra Transit Authority  
Performance Planning and Appraisal 

Page 4   7/2021 

          
6. ORGANIZATION AND PLANNING 

Conceptualizes the objectives of the unit or agency in support of the mission of ESTA; strategically plans and 
organizes activities and programs to meet goals in a timely manner; uses methods which enhance quality and 
productivity; evaluates goals and accomplishments; establishes priorities and accommodates changes when 
appropriate. 
 

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 
COMMENTS: 

      

          
7. APPLIED KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS 

Demonstrates technical expertise in performing the required duties of the position and, as appropriate, directs and 
trains others in fulfilling the technical requirements of their positions. 
 

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 
COMMENTS: 

      

 



Eastern Sierra Transit Authority  
Performance Planning and Appraisal 

Page 5   7/2021 

          
B. SUMMARY EVALUATION 

On the basis of the ratings assigned for each of the performance factors, please provide comments and evaluate the 
overall performance of the incumbent in accomplishing the responsibilities of the position. 

      

LEVEL OF PERFORMANCE 
           

  Not  Unsatisfactory Improvement Satisfactory Commendable Outstanding 
  Applicable   Needed 

          
C. FUTURE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

Outline goals and objectives to be undertaken by the incumbent during the next evaluation period.  Indicate 
performance expectations and timelines.  Also indicate the kind of support and assistance you will provide toward the 
attainment of these goals and objectives. 

      

Evaluator’s Signature 
 
 

Date 
      

          
D. EMPLOYEE’S COMMENTS (MAY USE ADDITIONAL SPACE AS NEEDED) 
      

 
 
                 
Employee’s Signature           Date 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item B-1 

 
A-1-1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
Subject:  Executive Director’s Contract 
Presented by: Phil Moores, Executive Director 

Background 

The current Executive Director’s employment contract was initiated and 
approved by the Board in October of 2018. The contract called for annual 
reviews and consideration of compensation adjustments. The adjustments 
were to be the same as the management contract each year.  Pursuant to 
your Board’s direction, attached for your consideration is a contract 
amendment that provides a 3% salary increase effective April 12, 2021, 
consistent with your recent approval of the MCEA bargaining group MOU.  

Recommendation 

Approve the submitted employment contract for the Executive Director, which 
includes a 3% salary increase effective April 12, 2021. 

Required Board Action  

If your Board intends to change the salary and/or benefits provided to Mr. 
Moores, Government Code Section 54953(c)(3) requires the following: 

“Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally report a 
summary of a recommendation for a final action on the salaries, salary 
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits of a local 
agency executive… during the open meeting in which the final action is 
to be taken…” 

In other words, if your Board decides to adjust Mr. Moores’ salary and/or 
benefits, you are required to summarize the package deal during this open 
session.  There is no exact way that the report is required to be made, so you 
may simply read out the Mr. Moores’ title, salary, any other direct monetary 
benefits, and a brief list of non-monetary benefits like health insurance, 
vacation, etc.  That information is set forth in the proposed revisions to 
“Attachment B” to Mr. Moores’ employment agreement with ESTA (attached). 





AMENDMENT NUMBER      1     TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE EASTERN SIERRA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

AND 
     PHIL MOORES__ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES  
AS THE ESTA EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SERVICES 

 
  

WHEREAS, the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (hereinafter referred to 
as “ESTA”) and Phil Moores (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have 
entered into an Agreement to provide personal services contractor services 
dated October 19, 2018. 
 
 WHEREAS, ESTA and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such 
Agreement as set forth below. 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, 
amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual consent of 
the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written from, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the 
original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
 ESTA and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement via a revised 
ATTACHMENT B, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein.  
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND 
SEALS THIS 25th DAY OF JUNE, 2021. 

ESTA                                               CONTRACTOR 

 

By:   ____________________  By:  ________________________  
   signature      signature 
 
 
_______________________   __________________________ 
Print name      print name 
 
 
Dated:  ________________   Dated:  ___________________     
 
 
The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is April 12, 2021. All 
the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain 
the same. 



June 25, 2021 
Item B-2 

B-3-1 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
Subject:   Short-Range Transit Plan – Coordinated Human Services Plan Contract 
 
Initiated by: Phil Moores, Executive Director, ESTA 
  
BACKGROUND 
The RFP resulted in one company bidding to conduct the two plans. LSC consultants are 
qualified to complete the plans, and in fact, they conducted ESTA’s plans in prior years. 
They are very familiar with the Eastern Sierra region and have experience with rural 
service areas. They recently completed the YARTS SRTP.  
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:   
ESTA was successful in our application and was awarded $113,372 toward our Short-
Range Transportation Plan and our Coordinated Human Services Plan. The Sustainable 
Communities Grant requires an 11.47% match in cash or in-kind contribution for approved 
planning projects. Eastern Sierra Transit will provide cash contributions for the grant. ESTA 
will appeal to the Mono and Inyo Local Transportation Commissions (LTC) for the matching 
funds which total $21,628. The total project is expected to cost around $135,000. 
  
ANALYSIS/DISCUSSION:   
The Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant funds public transportation planning 
studies in rural or small urban areas of California (transit service area with population of 
100,000 or less).  Regional Transportation Planning Agencies (RTPA) are eligible to apply 
for these funds as a direct applicant with the transit agency applying as the sub–applicant. 
As in years past, Mono LTC is the lead RTPA for the project. 
 
This grant will fund a Short-Range Transit Plan (SRTP) and Coordinated Human Services 
Plan for ESTA. The SRTP, which is required for federal transit funding, has been a valuable 
resource in guiding ESTA’s development and is now due for an update.  An updated short-
range transit plan will be supportive of the Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
(RTIP), establish a five-year strategic plan for ESTA, serve as justification for federal and 
state funding, and demonstrate ESTA’s stewardship of public funds. In addition, the 
updated SRTP will provide essential information, analysis and recommendations regarding 
operations, contracts, capital planning, and marketing. 
 
The Coordinated Human Services Plan is essential for maximizing the limited transit 
funding at both the state and federal level. This plan is required for agencies receiving FTA 
5310 funding. Coordinating transit services in our area will maximize mobility for residents 
and eliminate duplication of services. The primary focus of the plan is to develop and refine 
strategies that increase mobility for individuals with disabilities, older adults, and people 
with low incomes. 
 
The proposed contract is attached. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Authorize the Executive Director to sign the contract with LSC Consultants to conduct the 
planning for the Short-Range Transit Plan and the Coordinated Human Services Plan.  



















































































































June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item C-1 

C-1-1 
 

EASTERN SIERRA TRANSIT AUTHORITY 
 

Minutes of Friday, May 14, 2021 Meeting 
 
The meeting of the Board of Directors of the Eastern Sierra Transit Authority was 
called to order at 9:00 a.m. on Friday, May 14, 2021, via Zoom. The following 
members were present: Bob Gardner, Karen Schwartz, Rhonda Duggan, Bill Sauser, 
Jim Ellis, Jeff Griffiths, and Kirk Stapp. Director Dan Totheroh was absent. 
Phil Moores led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
Public Comment 
 

None 
 

Executive Directors 
Report 
 

Mr. Moores reported on ESTA activities and performance.  

Financial Report FY 
2020/21 

Ms. Bentley presented the 2020-21 financial report as of  
May 7, 2021. 
 

Ridership Report Mr. Moores presented the Ridership Report for  
March 2021. 
 

Bishop Mobile Office 
Lease 

Mr. Moores presented a report on the lease of a mobile office 
for ESTA’s Bishop location. 

Swiftly Contract Mr. Moores present a report on the Swiftly Contract. 

Reds Meadow Fare 
Increase – Public 
Hearing 

Public Hearing for comment on Reds Meadow Temporary Fare 
Increase opened at 9:28 am. There was no public comment. 
The Public Hearing was closed at 9:31 am. 
 

Reds Meadow 
Temporary Fare 
Increase 

Moved by Director Gardner and seconded by Director Duggan 
to approve the temporary Reds Meadow Fare Increase for the 
summer of 2021. 
 
Proposed Temporary fare: Adults $15.00, Children $7.00 
 
Roll call vote taken.   
 
Motion carried 7-0 with Director Totheroh absent. 
 

Approval of Revised 
Bus Purchase 

Moved by Director Griffiths and seconded by Director Sauser to 
ratify the purchase of two Starcraft Allstar F450 – Class C buses 
from Creative Bus Sales, in the amount of $231,272.36 funded 
with an FTA Section 5310 grant and Inyo Capital Restricted STA 
funds or with funds from ESTA’s capitol replacement account, 
with the busses to be ordered through the CalACT/MBTA 
purchasing cooperative. 
 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item C-1 

C-1-2 
 

Roll call vote taken. Motion carried 7-0. Director Totheroh 
absent. 
 

Consent Agenda: 
 
Approval of Regular 
Meeting Minutes of 
April 9, 2021. 
 
 

Moved by Director Gardner and seconded by Director Sauser to 
approve the Consent Agenda Consisting of: 
 
Approval of Meeting Minutes of March 12, 2021. 
 
Roll call vote taken. Motion carried 7-0. Director Totheroh 
absent. 
 

Closed Session Open Session was recessed at 9:39 am to convene in closed 
session to consider: 
 
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION – Conference with Labor 
Negotiators (Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6)      
Phil Moores and John Vallejo. Bargaining Group; ESTA-MCEA  
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – Anticipated 
Litigation: It is the intention of the Board to meet in closed 
session concerning the following item: Significant Exposure 
 to Litigation pursuant to government code 54956.6(b) one 
case.  
 

 

Report on Closed 
Session 

Closed session was recessed at 10:16 am. Director Sauser 
stated there was no action taken in closed session. 
 

Board Member 
Comments 
 

Director Gardner commented that Mammoth Lakes is 
working on their budget and there is a town hall meeting 
5/25/21. 
 
Director Griffiths commented that Inyo County is at 55.4% 
fully vaccinated and 72% for their 1st shot. 
 
Director Duggan commented that it’s really good to see  
agencies come together to work on solving the dispersed 
camping issue. Mammoth Lakes Tourism is working on their 
budget. Bluezapalooza is Aug. 5-8, it will be the 25th 
anniversary.  Mono LTC  discussed  unmet transit needs. 
Motocross will be happening. 
 
Director Schwartz commented that Mule Days is happening, 
although there will be no parade. Bishop is hosting a 4th of 
July day in the park with fireworks.  Work is being done to 
rezone the downtown area.   
 
Director Ellis said Mule Days should break even this year. 
 



June 25, 2021 
Agenda Item C-1 

C-1-3 
 

Director Sauser said the Town of Mammoth Lakes is working 
on their budget. There will be fireworks at Crowley Lake on 
the 4th of July.  CDC made changes on the mask issue but 
we still have to follow state rules. 
 

Adjournment 
 

The Chairperson adjourned the meeting at 10:24 am  
  
The next regular meeting of the Eastern Sierra Transit 
Authority Board of Directors is scheduled for August 13, 
2021 at 11:00 am. Check ESTA website for details on 
attending the meeting. 
 

 
Recorded & prepared by: 
 
______________________ 
Linda Robinson 
Board Clerk 
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority 
 
Minutes approved:   


	ESTA Board Agenda - May
	A-1 Executive Directors Report
	A-2 Financial Report
	A-3 Return to In-Person Meetings
	A-4 Bus Stop Sign Design
	A-4 ESTA Bus Stop Sign
	Boone Signs
	MntStd Sign
	SharpEnd Purple Sign
	SharpEnd_Black Sign
	SharpEnd_BlueWhite Sign

	A-5 Ridership Report
	A-6 SBP Report
	Eastern Sierra Transit Authority
	FY2021‐23 STRATEGIC BUSINESS PLAN
	Vision Statement
	Mission Statement
	Business Direction

	Focused 2021‐23 Strategic Business Plan Goals and Objectives
	Focused 2021‐23 Strategic Business Plan
	Standards of Excellence

	A-7 Staff Evaluations1
	A-7 Staff Evaluations
	Guidelines for Performance Appraisals
	ESTA Staff Evaluation Form

	B-1 Executive Director Contract Ammendment 1
	B-1 Executive Directors Contract.JV
	Director Contract Attachment B
	Draft.MooresAmendment 1

	B-2 SRTP - CHSP Contract
	B-2 SRTP & CHSP Contract
	Contract LSC Signed

	C-1 Draft Minutes 051421
	EASTERN SIERRA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
	Public Comment
	Closed Session
	Report on Closed Session
	Board Member Comments
	Adjournment




